West Coast Commercial Payload Processing

Draft Request for Proposal

Responses to Industry Questions/Comments

General:

1. Question: 

Does NASA intend to award a mission task order along with IDIQ award?

Response:

No.   The first task order will be initiated after the IDIQ award.

2. Question:

Can the contractor propose an alternate milestone payment schedule? Based upon 10 years of experience, 5% payment upon Task Order award is not adequate to cover costs from Task Order start through COFR.

Response:

No. NASA intends to maintain the same payment schedule for any contracts issued.

3. Question:

What are the timelines for RFP release, proposal due date and contract award?

Response:

Upon Final Solicitation release, any potential offerors will have minimum 30 days to submit a proposal. Final contract award is planned for the first quarter CY 2007, but will be dependent on the proposal(s) received.

4. Question:

What is the timeline between Task Order award and IFO?

Response:

Article B-7 addresses that the PPTO shall nominally be issued 12 months prior to the scheduled launch date. Article G-2 addresses other timelines in the task ordering procedures.

DRFP Section A – M:

5. Question:

ARTICLE B-7, CLIN 5 Facility Modifications – Request payment schedule for modifications greater than $10,000 paid 50% at time of task order execution and 50% upon completion of upgrade.

Response:

I concur with providing a more favorable payment schedule.   My suggestion would be to provide 10% at Task Order, 40% at design approval (per H-4, F.) and the remaining 50% upon completion of the work.

6. Question:

ARTICLE F-4 (a) Definitions, Facility Departure Date – Revise definition as follows: “The date that all payload hardware and personnel have vacated the facility, nominally 7 days after the launch date.” 

Response:

Concur.   Change made.

7. Question:

ARTICLE F-4 (b) Schedule Adjustments – Revise the following sentence as follows: “Government Delays declared between IFO and Facility Departure Date will be subject to equitable adjustment to cover Contractor costs not otherwise included in the weekly extended facility occupancy rate which applies to delays extending the Occupancy Period, plus grace period if applicable. beyond 15 weeks.” This change is recommended due to the requirement to price non-standard occupancy periods of 4 weeks and 10 weeks.

Response:

Concur.  Change made.

8. Question:

ARTICLE H-2, 4. – Revise wording as follows: “NASA payloads shall be physically safe from effects of other planned operations as well as NASA personnel, and their contractors, representatives, and approved visitors,” This recommended change is suggested due to the possibility of an unplanned event causing harm to NASA hardware or personnel. 

Response:

Concur.  Change made. Sentence structure corrected.

SOW:
9. Question:

General - Air Force Space Command Manual (AFSPCMAN) 91-710 is referenced / required throughout the SOW. Astrotech is grandfathered by an approved tailored EWR 127-1, thus is not required by the Range to comply with AFSPCMAN 91-710. Request that the statement “or approved tailored EWR 127-1” be inserted after each reference to AFSPCMAN 91-710. 

Response:

The exception for pre-approved EWR tailored documents was added under Section 2.0 so that the exception is stated directly in the SOW.    It applies to all references of AFSPCMAN 91-710.

10. Question:

Ref Para:  1.3 – Is NASA going to be responsible for foreign national support at VAFB other than at the IPF?

Response:

Yes.   

11. Question:

Para. 2.1.1 – Requirement is for two Customer Office Areas. State total number of personnel requiring office accommodations, including Launch Site Integration Managers.

Response:

Total number of personnel, up to 45 between the two areas, was added.

12. Question:

Para. 2.2 – Define “critical facility systems”. 

Response:

Added in 2.2 and also to the definitions in Attachment D.

13. Question:

Ref Para:  2.2.1 – is compliance with the SSI approved version of EWR 127-1T acceptable for the paragraph (as stated generically in Attachment E)?

Response:

Yes.   This is stated in H-3, SOW 2.2 (added here for greater clarity) and Attachment E.

14. Question:

Para. 2.2.3 

a. Communications are required “during payload processing and launch.” Currently, the Astrotech facility must be evacuated during launches from SLC 2 (Delta II Launch Complex) and SLC 576E (Taurus Launch Complex). Please clarify your intention for Astrotech’s support during launches from these launch complexes. 

b. The connectivity required outside Astrotech is not specific in some areas. Request a communications matrix that identifies specifically what communication services, including any required redundancy, are required to each facility at VAFB. 

Response:

a.   This situation is recognized for the facilities on VAFB near launch pads and will be addressed directly during the task order process.    Paragraph 2.2.3 does state “…as specified in the PPTO” and this statement was added to an additional items.    The final PPTO will not require on-site support from a facility that is prohibited from being occupied by AFSPCMAN 91-710.

b.     Video: 8 video scenes to Bldg. 836.  No redundancy required. Voice: 24 full duplex voice nets to Bldg. 836.  Redundancy required. LAN/WAN: Administrative LAN/WAN/Internet access.  No redundancy required.
15. Question:

Ref Para:  2.2.3.2 – How many stations are required?

Response:

The question appears to be against 2.2.3.1 rather than as stated and will be answered against 2.2.3.1.

A typical NASA mission requires 3 EIs (Stations) in the High Bay, 5 EIs in the Control Room, 1 EI in the Office area and 1 EI in the Conference Room. . .for a total of 10 EIs.  Also, for planning purposes, it is assumed that each EI will support two users simultaneously.  

16. Question:

Ref Para:  2.2.3.2 – What growth capability is required

Response:

The question appears to be against 2.2.3.1 rather than as stated and will be answered against 2.2.3.1.

A growth capability up to 20 total stations throughout the spacecraft assigned areas is required.

17. Question:

Ref Para:  2.2.3.5 – Can Wavelength Division Multiplexing be used?

Response:

It is not recommended.  The Government demarcation point is within the contractor’s facility with access to Range Transport (i.e. Fiber, SONET, etc.).

18. Question:

Ref Para:  2.2.3.6 – In the past SSI has provided single direction S-Band to SLC‑2. Is bi-directional required?

Response:

Yes.  Bi-directional is necessary (up link and down link antennas and cables to patch panels at Government demarcation point).

19. Question:

Ref Para:  2.2.3.6 – Is bi-directional S-Band required to both Bldg. 836 and SLC‑2?

Response:

Yes.  Bi-directional S-band links to either 836 or SLC-2 but not both simultaneously

20. Question:

Ref Para:  2.2.3.7 – Is the VAFB Interface Point Bldg. 7011? What is the bandwidth requirement?

Response:

No.  The VAFB I/F point is where the contactor interfaces with their Internet Service Provider.  The bandwidth requirement is a minimum of 1.5 Mb/s

21. Question:
Para. 2.3.1 – Define “An additional period of time shall be allocated…” 

Response:

The additional period of time is defined in the RFP, specifically in Article F-4.

22. Question: 

Ref Para: 2.3.1.3 – Will NASA consider the transport of flight hardware and GSE from the flight line to the contractor’s facility as government furnished?

Response:

NASA will always consider alternative proposals but will require a technical justification or a price break for serious consideration.   

23. Question:

Ref Para: 2.3.1.3 – Will NASA consider security escort of the transport of flight hardware and GSE from the flight line to the contractor’s facility as government furnished?

Response:

NASA will always consider alternative proposals but will require a technical justification or a price break for serious consideration.   

24. Question:

Para 2.3.1.6 – Specify required reach of manlifts and ladders. 

Response:

Added to the SOW.

25. Question:

Para 2.3.1.10 – Handling and disposing of excess or damaged ordnance and explosives is not an Astrotech standard service and would typically be the responsibility of the hardware owner. If this requirement is valid, please specify maximum quantity of ordnance and explosives. 

Response:

Removed from the SOW.   This will be responsibility of the Government if needed.

26. Question:

Para 2.3.1.12 

a. Specify specific temperature and humidity requirements for tools and GSE storage space. 

b. “The contractor shall provide troubleshooting and platform services …” Define “platform services”.
Response:

a.   Temp and humidity requirements were added to the SOW.

b.  Sentence reworded for clarity.

27. Question:

Ref Para: 2.3.1.13 – Would the government consider providing ELSA and Breathing Air breakout panels and manifolds?

Response:

NASA will always consider alternative proposals but will require a technical justification or a price break for serious consideration.

28. Question:

Para 2.4 – Astrotech does not currently have the capability for spin balancing. Request spin balance service to be classified as a Mission Unique Service.

Response:

Spin balance services are not currently requested as a standard or non-standard service and will be a mission unique service, as necessary.    Paragraph 2.4 only asks that the facility be sited and approved to perform these operations.  This is to allow the customer to bring their own spin balance machine and controls.
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